Leddar Tech MASTERING LIDAR SENSOR TECHNOLOGY



Leddar T16 Solid-State LiDAR Traffic Sensor USER GUIDE

Page Intentionally Left Blank

© 2019 LeddarTech[™] Inc. All rights reserved.

LeddarTech[™] Inc., referred to as the Company shall not be liable for any errors contained herein or for any damages arising out of or related to this document or the information contained therein, even if the Company has been advised of the possibility of such damages.

The information contained herein is the property of the Company, and shall not be reproduced in whole or in part without prior written approval of the Company. The Company assumes no responsibility for any errors or omissions in this document.

Leddar is a trademark of LeddarTech[™] Inc. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

Leddar[™] Configuration software: this software is based in part on the work of the Independent JPEG Group.

DISCLAIMER

LeddarTech[™] Inc. reserves the right to modify the products and/or specifications described herein at any time, without notice, at LeddarTech's sole discretion. Performance specifications and operating parameters of the described products are determined in an independent state and are not guaranteed to perform the same way when installed in customer products. The information contained herein is provided without representation or warranty of any kind, whether express or implied, including, but not limited to, the suitability of LeddarTech's products for any particular purpose, an implied warranty of merchantability, or non-infringement of the intellectual property rights of others. This document is presented only as a guide and does not convey any license under intellectual property rights of LeddarTech or any third parties.

Table of Contents

VERSION HISTORY	7
LIST OF FIGURES	8
LIST OF TABLES	0
CONTACT INFORMATION 1	1
DOCUMENT CONVENTIONS	2
1. LABEL EXPLANATION AND SAFETY INFORMATION	3
1.1. REGULATORY COMPLIANCE	3
2. INTRODUCTION	4
2.1. DEFINITIONS	4 5 6
3. DESCRIPTION	7
3.1. EQUIPMENT DESIGNATION AND DESCRIPTION 1 3.1.1. Key Components 1 3.1.2. Distance Measurement 2	7 9 2
4. SPECIFICATIONS	3
4.1. GENERAL CHARACTERISTICS 2 4.2. MECHANICAL SPECIFICATIONS 2 4.2.1. Leddar T16 Traffic Dimensions 2 4.2.2. Leddar T16 Tolling Dimensions 2 4.2.3. Distance Screw 2 4.3. ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATIONS 2 4.4. ENVIRONMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS 2	3 4 5 5 6 9 9
4.5. SOFTWARE SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS	9
5. INSTALLING THE LEDDAR T16 SENSOR	0
5.1. INSTALLING AND ORIENTING THE SENSOR 3 5.2. CONNECTING THE LEDDAR T16 SENSOR 3	0 2
6. INSTALLING LEDDAR [™] CONFIGURATION	3
6.1. CONNECTING TO LEDDAR [™] CONFIGURATION	4
7. LEDDAR [™] CONFIGURATION	8
7.2. FILE MENU 4 7.2.1. Recordings (.Itl file) 4 7.2.1.1. How to Edit Recording Settings 4 7.2.1.2. How to Record a Scene 4 7.2.1.3. How to Play a Recording 4 7.2.1.4. How to Extract a Scene Segment 5	4 5 7 7 0

7.2.2.	Data Logging (.txt file)	51
7.2.2.1.	How to Setup Data Logging	51
7.2.2.2.	How to Start and Stop Data Logging	51
7.3. Dev	/ICE MENU	52
7.3.1.	Configurations	53
7.3.1.1.	Device Name and How to Change it	53
7.3.2.	Acquisition Settings	54
7.3.3.	Network Settings	57
7.3.4.	Orientation Control (Pan/Tilt Adjustment)	58
7.3.5.	Video Settings	59
7.3.6.	Action	60
7.4. VIE	N MENU	61
7.4.1.	Device State	62
7.4.2.	Image Activation	63
7.4.3.	Grid Activation	63
7.4.4.	Raw Detections	64
7.4.5.	Raw Detections Graph	67
7.4.5.1.	Setting Scale Areas and Detection Points	68
7.4.5.2.	Detection Scene Short Keys	74
7.5. Set	TINGS MENU	75
7.5.1.	Record Settings	75
7.5.2.	Data Logger	76
7.5.3.	Preferences	77
7.5.4.	Access Level	79
7.6. Hel	P MENU	80
7.6.1.	User Guide	80
7.6.2.	Leddar [™] SDK Help	80
7.6.3.	About	80
8. COMMU	INICATION PROTOCOL	81
9. TROUB	LESHOOTING	82
10. MAIN	TENANCE	83
12. TECH	NICAL SUPPORT	86
13. INDEX	٢	87
	A. STATIC IP AND DHCP CONFIGURATION UNDER WINDOWS 7 AND UP	89
		20
		ບອ ດວ
FARID-C		93
APPENDIX I	3. MAKING CONNECTORS FOR THE ETHERNET CABLE	95
APPENDIX (LEDDAR T1	C. PROCEDURE TO USE LEDDARCDEMO (SDK CODE EXAMPLE) WITH TH 6 SENSOR	E 101

Version History

VERSION	DESCRIPTION	DATE (YYYY-MM-DD)
54A0043-1EN	Initial release	2019-02-06
54A0043-2EN	 Reviewed Document Conventions section. FCC mention moved to section 1.1. Table 6 and Table 9: Mention of 48° Traffic configuration deleted. Table 10 and Table 11: Detection ranges modified and notes added. 	2019-03-28

List of Figures

Figure 1: Time of Flight	. 15
Figure 2: Front View of the Leddar T16 Traffic Sensor	. 20
Figure 3: Front View of the Leddar T16 Tolling Sensor	. 20
Figure 4: Back View of the Leddar T16 Traffic	. 21
Figure 5: Back View of the Leddar T16 Tolling	. 21
Figure 6: Distance Measurement with the Leddar T16 Sensor	. 22
Figure 7: Leddar T16 Traffic Sensor Dimensions	. 25
Figure 8: Leddar T16 Tolling Sensor Dimensions	. 25
Figure 9: Leddar T16 Traffic Top View – Measurements Between Mounting Threads	. 26
Figure 10: Leddar T16 Traffic Bottom View – Measurements Between Mounting Threads	. 27
Figure 11: Leddar T16 Tolling Bottom View – Measurements Between Mounting Threads	. 28
Figure 12: Mounting Position Examples	. 30
Figure 13: Orienting the Sensor with Reference Marks	. 31
Figure 14: Sensor Position Adjustments	. 31
Figure 15: Windows Security Dialog Box	. 33
Figure 16: Leddar™ Configuration Opening Window	. 34
Figure 17: Connection Window	. 35
Figure 18: Opened Window Check Mark Example	. 38
Figure 19: Warning Message Example	. 38
Figure 20: Leddar™ Configuration Traffic Configuration Main Window	. 39
Figure 21: Leddar™ Configuration Tolling Configuration Main Window	. 40
Figure 22 : Record Settings Window	. 46
Figure 23: Record Replay Window at Opening	. 48
Figure 24: Record Replay Window with File Open	. 48
Figure 25: Extracted Segment Example	. 50
Figure 26: Data Log Settings Dialog Box	. 51
Figure 27: Device Name Dialog Box	. 54
Figure 28: Acquisition Settings Dialog Box	. 54
Figure 29: Network Settings Configuration Window	. 57
Figure 30: Orientation Control Window	. 58
Figure 31: Active Grid Application Example	. 58
Figure 32: Video Settings Window	. 59
Figure 33: Device State Dialog Box	. 62
Figure 34: Raw Detections Window	. 64
Figure 35: Raw Detection Graph Example	. 67
Figure 36: Vertical Scale Setting Areas (Traffic Configuration)	. 69
Figure 37: Vertical Scale Setting Areas (Tolling Configuration)	. 70
Figure 38: Horizontal Scale Setting Areas (Traffic Configuration)	. 71
Figure 39: Horizontal Scale Setting Areas (Tolling Configuration)	. 72
Figure 40: Detection Point Coordinates (Traffic Configuration)	. 73
Figure 41: Detection Point Coordinates (Tolling Configuration)	. 74
Figure 42: Recording Settings Window	. 75
Figure 44: Data Logger Dialog Box	. 77
Figure 45: Preferences Options Window	. 77

Figure 46: Enter Password Dialog Box	79
Figure 47: Change Adapter Settings	89
Figure 48: Ethernet Network Option	90
Figure 49: Ethernet Properties	91
Figure 50: IP Address and Subnet Mask	92
Figure 51: Sensor Connection to POE+ Switch	93
Figure 52: Ethernet Properties	94
Figure 53: IP Address and Subnet Mask	94
Figure 54: RJ45 Industrial Modular Connector Kit for the Sensor Side of the Ethernet Cable	95
Figure 55: Ethernet Cable with the Jacket Stripped and Plug Housing	96
Figure 56: Twisted Pairs	96
Figure 57: Cat 5e T568B Wiring Diagram	97
Figure 58: Wires in the Load Bar	97
Figure 59: Trimming the Wires	98
Figure 60: Inserting the Load Bar and Wires in the RJ45 Plug	98
Figure 61: Crimping the RJ45 Plug	99
Figure 62: RJ45 Strain Relief Connector Kit for the Oend of the Ethernet Cable 1	00

List of Tables

Table 1: Explanation of Labels on the Sensor	. 13
Table 2: Regulatory Compliance	. 13
Table 3: Definitions	. 14
Table 4: Key Factors for Best Performance	. 16
Table 5: Equipment Designation	. 17
Table 6: Leddar T16 Sensor Traffic and Tolling Configurations	. 18
Table 7: Ethernet Cable Description	. 18
Table 8: Leddar T16 Characteristics	. 23
Table 9: Test Conditions and Detection Range (Traffic)	. 23
Table 10: Test Conditions and Detection Range (Tolling)	. 24
Table 11: Leddar T16 Mechanical Specifications	. 24
Table 12: Leddar T16 Electrical Specifications	. 29
Table 13: Leddar T16 Environmental Specifications	. 29
Table 14: Leddar [™] Configuration System Requirements	. 29
Table 15: Connection Window Information	. 36
Table 16: Main Window Menus	. 41
Table 17: Main Window Toolbar	. 43
Table 18: File Menu Options	. 44
Table 19: Record Replay Window	. 49
Table 20: Device Menu Options	. 52
Table 21: Acquisition Settings Window	. 55
Table 22: Network Configuration Window	. 57
Table 23: Video Settings	. 59
Table 24: Action Buttons Description	. 60
Table 25: View Menu Options	. 61
Table 26: Device State Information	. 62
Table 27: Raw Detections Parameters	. 65
Table 28: Flag Value Description	. 66
Table 29: Recording Settings	. 75
Table 30: Preferences Window Options and Settings	. 78

Contact Information

	LeddarTech	LeddarTech
	Head Office	Production and Shipping
Address	4535 Wilfrid-Hamel Blvd, Suite 240 Quebec City QC G1P 2J7 Canada3220 Watt Ave, Suite 120 Quebec City QC G1X 4Z6 Canada	
Phone Number	+1 418 653-9000 +1 855 865-9900 8:30 a.m 5:00 p.m. EST	
Technical Support	support@leddartech.com	
Website	www.leddartech.com	

Document Conventions

This document uses the following conventions.

Name of Menu > Name of Window	Shows the access path to menus under each section of Leddar™ Configuration.
Arial bold	The name of buttons, menus, and dialog boxes are presented in bold .
	Notes contain helpful suggestion and references to information included within this user guide.
\triangle	Warnings refers to a warning or an important information to follow.

1. Label Explanation and Safety Information

Label	Location on the Sensor	Description
Model Serial Number	On the back of the sensor	Part number (PN) starting with 75A and Serial Number (SN). This information is useful when contacting LeddarTech support.

Table 1: Explanation of Labels on the Sensor

1.1. Regulatory Compliance

Table 2: Regulatory	Compliance
---------------------	------------

Ingress Protection	IP67
Ocular Safety	IEC 62471 2006 criteria: Exempt lamp classification
	Part 15, Subpart B, Class A
FCC	This device complies with part 15 of the FCC Rules. Operation is subject to the following two conditions: (1) This device may not cause harmful interference, and (2) this device must accept any interference received, including interference that may cause undesired operation.
ICES-003	Class A This Class A digital apparatus complies with Canadian ICES-003.
CE	Yes

2. Introduction

2.1. Definitions

Table 3: Definitions

Term	Definition
Active grid	Sensing area of a sensor. The active grid measures the range of detected objects and must be centered on the zones that need to be monitored. It is represented by an overlay of the live video window (Traffic configuration only).
Amplitude	Measure of the signal strength.
AR	Anti-reflective
Area of interest	The area that needs to be monitored.
Camera	The camera in the sensor that provides video and images used for viewing the detection area (area of interest).
Channel	Synonym of "segment". See the definition of the word segment.
Crosstalk	Phenomenon by which a signal transmitted in one segment creates an undesired effect in an adjacent segment.
Depth of the detection zone	Distance along the y axis (road) within which the sensor will detect a vehicle.
	Object detected in one segment.
Detection	Detections include at least the following data: Segment identification, distance measurement, and the intensity of the backscattered light of the object.
FOV	Field of View.
Opening angle	The angle of the detection zone.
Time of Flight	Refer to section 2.2 Underlying Principles and LiDAR Fundamentals for more details.
Segment	A segment is defined by a horizontal index in the FOV. Synonym of "channel".

2.2. Underlying Principles and LiDAR Fundamentals

Created by LeddarTech[™] Inc., Leddar[™] (light-emitting diode detection and ranging) is a unique sensing technology based on LED illumination (infrared spectrum) and the time-of-flight of light principle. The LED emitters illuminate the area of interest and the multi-segment sensor receiver collects the backscattered light and measures the time taken for the light to return to the sensor.

A photodetector array is used and provides multiple detection and ranging segments. Fullwaveform analysis enables detection and distance measurement of multiple objects in each segment as illustrated in Figure 1, provided that foreground objects do not fully obscure objects behind them.



Figure 1: Time of Flight

2.3. Key Factors for Best Sensor Performance

The following factors are important to consider for obtaining the best operating performance.

Key Factors	Description
Size of the target	The larger the target, the higher is the range. The smaller the target, the lower is the range.
Reflectivity of the target	With a high surface reflectivity, the range is higher. With a low surface reflectivity, the range is lower.
Position of the target within the FOV	With centered channels (segments), the range is higher. With outer channels (segments), the range is lower.

Table 4: Key Factors for Best Performance

3. Description

This user guide is intended to provide information on and describe the Leddar[™] T16 Solid-State LiDAR Traffic Sensor (hereinafter referred to as "Leddar T16") for developers, integrators and/or engineers.

The Leddar[™] T16 Traffic Sensor is a 2D solid-state LiDAR that is specifically designed for traffic management systems from city to highway applications. Packaged in a weatherproof housing, the Leddar T16 offers cost efficient and highly accurate detection for various Intelligent Transportation System (ITS) applications, such as electronic tolling, traffic monitoring and traffic law enforcement. At the heart of the sensor resides the patented Leddar digital signal processing technology, which provides superior detection, location and measurement capabilities for all types of traffic, including vehicles, pedestrians and cyclists. The Leddar T16 measures both the distance and angular positioning for each detected target. Its collected data enables functionalities, such as vehicle profiling, speed measurement, and traffic data collection.

The Leddar T16's flash illumination emitted by its LED sources covers the sensor's complete field of view. Capturing the return echoes of these diffused light pulses through 16 independent active detection elements at a high acquisition rate, the Leddar T16 Traffic Sensor continuously provides rapid and accurate detection and ranging in the entire beam without any moving mechanical parts. The returned signals are digitized and processed through innovative algorithms, allowing the reliable detection and measurement of a wide range of objects under the most challenging environmental conditions, such as rain, snow and fog.

Keep this user guide for future reference.

3.1. Equipment Designation and Description

Table 5: Equipment Designation

Family Name	Leddar T16
Model	Solid-State LiDAR Traffic Sensor
Configurations	Traffic and Tolling Sensors



This document refers to all models described below unless otherwise mentioned.

Leddar T16 Traffic	Options	Leddar T16 Tolling	Options
9 ° (75A0030-1)		9 ° (75A0025-1)	AR coated window
10 ° (7540021-1)	Pan and Tilt	19° (75A0026-1)	Lens shield
19 (75A0021-1)	Camera	26° (75A0027-1)	No enclosure
26° (75A0022-1)	Enclosure	36° (75A0028-1)	Ne see end tit
	sunsnade		• No pan and tilt
36 ° (75A0023-1)		48 ° (75A0029-1)	No camera

Table 6: Leddar T16 Sensor Traffic and Tolling Configurations

The Leddar T16 Sensor comes with the following software and accessories.

- Leddar[™] Configuration and Software Development Kit (SDK)
- Ethernet connector kit. Refer to Appendix B for more details.

Table 7: Ethernet Cable Description

Ethernet Connector Kit	Description
	Cat5e RJ45 shielded connector (with load bars), IP67 industrial modular connector and yellow strain relief boot.

3.1.1. Key Components

Receiver	Emitter
Receiver Lens	Light EmitterDiffuser lens

Figure 2, Figure 3, and Figure 4 below show the Leddar T16 Sensor key components.



Figure 2: Front View of the Leddar T16 Traffic Sensor



Figure 3: Front View of the Leddar T16 Tolling Sensor



Figure 4: Back View of the Leddar T16 Traffic Sensor



Figure 5: Back View of the Leddar T16 Tolling Sensor



* Brass inserts (two on the back and one on each side of the Tolling Sensor) serve to fix the optional enclosure sunshade only.

3.1.2. Distance Measurement

The red line indicates the distance that is measured from the screw located on the sides of the Leddar T16 Sensor as shown in Figure 6.



Figure 6: Distance Measurement with the Leddar T16 Sensor

The blue dashed lines illustrate one segment and the solid line indicates the distance measured by the sensor in that segment.

4. Specifications

4.1. **General Characteristics**

Number of Segments	16
	48° x 7.5°
	36° x 5.9°
Horizontal x Vertical FOV	26° x 4.2°
	19° x 3.0°
	9° x 1.6°
Resolution	3.00°, 2.25°, 1.63°, 1.19°, 0.56°
Wavelength	940 nm
Photodetector Array Size	1 x 16
Measurement Rate	Fixed at 196 Hz
Accuracy	± 5 cm

Table 8: Leddar T16 Characteristics

Table 9: Test Conditions and Detection Range (Traffic)

Ledda	r T16 Traffi	C		Detection	Range (m)	
Configuration	Horizontal FOV (°)	Vertical FOV (°)	Retro- reflector ¹	White 90% Reflectivity ²	Gray 18% Reflectivity ³	NCAP Pedestrian 40%
75A0030-1	9	1.6	49	39	19	49
75A0021-1	19	3.0	49	36	18	47
75A0022-1	26	4.2	49	18	12	27
75A0023-1	36	5.9	49	15	8	20

1. Retro-reflector reference target corresponds to a 5 cm x 7 cm band of retro-reflective tape.

White reference target corresponds to a 20 cm x 25 cm Kodak Greycard with 90% reflectivity.
 Gray reference target corresponds to a 20 cm x 25 cm Kodak Greycard with 18% reflectivity.

Ledda	r T16 Tollin	g		Detection	Range (m)	
Configuration	Horizontal FOV (°)	Vertical FOV (°)	Retro- reflector ¹	White 90% Reflectivity ²	Gray 18% Reflectivity ³	NCAP Pedestrian 40%
75A0025-1	9	1.6	49	36	17	46
75A0026-1	19	3.0	49	32	16	42
75A0027-1	26	4.2	49	17	11	24
75A0028-1	36	5.9	49	13	7	18
75A0029-1	48	7.5	49	11	6	15

Table 10: Test Conditions and Detection Range (Tolling)

1. Retro-reflector reference target corresponds to a 5 cm x 7 cm band of retro-reflective tape.

White reference target corresponds to a 20 cm x 25 cm Kodak Greycard with 90% reflectivity.
 Gray reference target corresponds to a 20 cm x 25 cm Kodak Greycard with 18% reflectivity.

Mechanical Specifications 4.2.

	Leddar T16 Traffic	Leddar T16 Tolling	
Height	226 mm / 9 in.	208.7 mm / 8.2 in.	
Length	386 mm / 15.2 in.	277 mm / 10.9 in.	
Width	259 mm / 10.2 in.	252.4 mm / 9.9 in.	
Weight	3 kg (6.6 lbs)	2.3 kg (5 lbs)	
Mounting Threads	M6 x 1.0		
Mounting	Compatible with standard traffic hardware		

Table 11: Leddar T16 Mechanical Specifications

4.2.1. Leddar T16 Traffic Dimensions



Figure 7: Leddar T16 Traffic Sensor Dimensions

4.2.2. Leddar T16 Tolling Dimensions



Figure 8: Leddar T16 Tolling Sensor Dimensions

4.2.3. Distance Screw

Figure 9, Figure 10, and Figure 11 below shows the measurements between the mounting threads of the Traffic and Tolling Sensors.



Figure 9: Leddar T16 Traffic Top View – Measurements Between Mounting Threads







Figure 11: Leddar T16 Tolling Bottom View – Measurements Between Mounting Threads

4.3. Electrical Specifications

Power Supply	IEEE 802.3at PoE+ (Power over Ethernet Plus), 56 VDC	
Power Supply Tolerance	54 V to 57 V (56 V nominal) It is strongly recommended not to exceed this range as there is a surge protection at 58 V.	
Power Consumption (total)	15 W (without heater) 30 W (with heater)	

Table 12: Leddar T16 Electrical Specifications

4.4. Environmental Specifications

Operating Temperature Range	−40° C to + 60° C (−40° F to +140° F)
Humidity	100%
Water Tightness	IP67

4.5. Software System Requirements

Table 14: Leddar[™] Configuration System Requirements

Operating System	Windows 7 and up
Memory	1 GB
Disk Space	150 MB
Communication Interface	100BASE-T Ethernet

5. Installing the Leddar T16 Sensor

This section provides information and procedures to install and start the Leddar T16 Sensor.

5.1. Installing and Orienting the Sensor

This section presents how to install and orient the sensor. The mounting bracket can be attached to the top or bottom of the Leddar sensor as shown in the examples below.



Figure 12: Mounting Position Examples

Required tools and materials

- 10 mm wrench
- Mounting brackets (of customer-supplied)

To install and orient the sensor:

- 1. Use the provided hardware to attach the sensor to the mounting bracket. The supplied lock washers must be installed between the bolt head and the bracket. Do not over tighten. The recommended torque is 60 in.-lb. (6 Nm).
- Orient the sensor so that the first segment is located on the side of the detection zone and that the active grid (green) is centered in depth with two reference marks (blue circle) you have placed on the side of the road (see Figure 13).



Figure 13: Orienting the Sensor with Reference Marks

The sensor has three position controls: pan, tilt, and roll (see Figure 14).

The pan and tilt are adjustable using the sensor motor (Traffic configuration only); the roll can only be adjusted by hand using the mounting bracket.

These adjustments vary according to the side of the road on which the sensor is installed.



Figure 14: Sensor Position Adjustments

Refer to section **7.3.4 Orientation Control** to know how to change the sensor orientation.

5.2. Connecting the Leddar T16 Sensor

Once Leddar[™] Configuration is installed, you can connect the sensor.

The sensor is in DHCP mode by default.



Refer to **Appendix A** (part A or part B) for the detailed procedure on how to configure the network with either a static IP or DHCP connection.

6. Installing Leddar[™] Configuration

- 1. Download LeddarInstall.exe via the provided link or LeddarTech's support portal.
- 2. Double-click the file to start the installation.
- 3. If the Windows Security dialog box opens, click the **Install** button to accept the installation of the drivers from LeddarTech during the process.



Figure 15: Windows Security Dialog Box

The first time the sensor is connected to a computer, about 30 seconds are required for Windows[™] to detect it and complete the installation.

- 4. Follow the steps in the Welcome to the Leddar[™] Configuration Software Setup Wizard.
- 5. On your computer desktop, click the Leddar[™] Configuration icon to open the software.



Refer to **Appendix A** (part A or part B) for the detailed procedure on how to configure the network with either a static IP or DHCP connection.

6.1. Connecting to Leddar[™] Configuration

1. Open Leddar[™] Configuration. The following window appears:



Figure 16: Leddar™ Configuration Opening Window





The first time the sensor is connected to a computer, about 30 seconds are required for Windows^M to detect it and complete the installation.

3. In the **Connection** window, select a sensor in the list. Information about that sensor will appear under the list box.

The sensor list displays all the sensors that are currently recognized by the network.

The color of items in the list indicates the status of a sensor.

- Black: This sensor is available, and no user is connected to it.
- Blue: There is a user connected to this sensor.
- Red: Incapable of communicating. After a certain delay, if the sensor does not respond to requests, it is displayed in red.

Con	nection			X
S	elect a device in the list:			_
	Name	Address/Id	Type	
	DEFAULT NAME	10.2.4.120	Leddar T16	
	Interface (1-4)	10.2.4.121	Interface	
1	Sensor AK15084	10.2.4.152	Leddar T16	
E	thernet address: F0-C8-8C-00-1 Mode	ID-4C	•	
	🔘 Unicast			
	Address	Subnet Mask:	255.255.255.0	
	© NAT			
	Connect		Cancel	

Figure 17: Connection Window

4. a) If the sensor is automatically detected. Click on the available sensor in the list.

b) Otherwise, enter the IP address 192.168.0.20 and Port number 48630.

- 5. Click **Connect** to connect to the available sensor.
- 6. To disconnect from the sensor, click in the toolbar or go to **Device > Disconnect**.
- 7. To quit Leddar[™] Configuration, go to **File > Quit**.

Connection Details and Feature	Description	
Status Message/State	The status message is the connection status for a sensor, which indicates for example if a sensor is available or in use. The most common status messages are: • Waiting for connection • Connected • Connected and busy • Running • Running Connected • Running Connected Busy	
Serial Number	The serial number of the sensor as attributed by LeddarTech.	
Versions	FPGA: Firmware version of the sensor. Software: Software version of the sensor. CRC: Software Cyclic Redundancy Check for integrity validation.	
Part Numbers	bers Indicates the hardware and software part numbers of the sensor as attributed by LeddarTech.	
Ethernet Address	Also called the Ethernet MAC address, this is a unique identifier of the sensor on the network.	
Mode - Local Broadcast	Local Broadcast enumerates the sensors by sending a directed broadcast to the local subnet broadcast address. For example, if the IP address of the computer is 192.158.50.20 and the subnet mask is 255.255.255.0, the local broadcast address 192.168.50.255 will be used. This address will enumerate local sensors; additionally, in a wide area network (WAN) the routers can be configured to route this directed broadcast, enabling sensors on a remote subnet to be enumerated.	

Table 15: Connection Window Information
Connection Details and Feature	Description
Mode - Unicast	Unicast enumerates the sensors by sending unicast messages to every address defined by the IP Address and Subnet Mask boxes.
	For example, if 192.168.60.0 is entered as an IP address and 255.255.255.0 as a subnet, then unicast messages will be sent to every address from 192.168.60.1 to 192.168.60.254 to verify if there is a sensor present. If there is, then the sensor will appear in the connection list.
Mode - Address	Address is used to connect to a precise IP address when too many addresses are present in the network connection used. It is also used to connect to sensors located behind a router acting as a network address translation (NAT) gateway.
Mode - NAT	The network address translation (NAT) feature is typically used to access sensors via the Internet, where the individual sensors share a single public IP address. To access sensors behind a NAT gateway, prior configuration of the gateway is required to forward the appropriate ports to the individual sensors. Up to 10 sensors can be supported.

7. Leddar[™] Configuration

The Leddar[™] Configuration software allows the user to view the detection measurements provided by the connected sensor. The detections may vary based on the configuration of the parameters.

The main window can be resized manually or set to full-screen view.

When a dialog box or a window is already open a checkmark appears next to the command on the menu.



Figure 18: Opened Window Check Mark Example

When parameters such as the name of the sensor or acquisition settings are modified, a warning

message in red appears in the main window. Click V in the toolbar to save your changes.



Figure 19: Warning Message Example

7.1. Main Windows, Menus and Buttons

Once connected to the sensor, the main window of Leddar[™] Configuration displays the following menus, toolbar and view. See their description below.



Figure 20: Leddar™ Configuration Traffic Configuration Main Window



Figure 21: Leddar™ Configuration Tolling Configuration Main Window

Table 16: Main Window Menus

Menu Description	
File	Click File to access the following menus: File > Record Replay File > Load Configuration File > Save Configuration As File > Start/Stop Recording File > Import Configuration File > Start/Stop Data Logging File > Quit Refer to section 7.2 File Menu for more details.
Device	Click Device to access the following menus: Traffic Configuration Menu Device > Disconnect Device > Apply Changes Device > Undo Changes Device > Configuration > Name Device > Configuration > Acquisition Settings Device > Configuration > Network Device > Configuration > Orientation Device > Configuration > Video Device > Action > Start/Stop Live Update Device > Action > Take Snapshot Tolling Configuration Menu Device > Disconnect Device > Disconnect Device > Configuration > Name Device > Configuration > Network Refer to section 7.3 Device Menu for more details.
View	Click View to access the following menus: Traffic Configuration Menu View > Device State View > Image View > Active Grid

	View > Raw Detections	
	View > Raw Detections Graph	
	Tolling Configuration Menu	
	View > Device State	
	View > Raw Detections	
	Refer to section 7.4 View Menu for more details.	
	▲	
	The d-tec Virtual Channels option is not compatible with the	
	Leddar T16 Sensors.	
	Olick Settings to appear the following manua:	
Click Settings to access the following menus:		
	Settings > Record Settings > Data Logger	
Settings		
Settings > Access Levels		
	Refer to section 7.5 Settings menu for more details.	
	Click Help to access the following menus:	
	Help > User Guide	
Help	Help > Leddar™ SDK Guide	
-	Help > About	
Refer to section 7.6 Help Menu for more details.		

Table 17: Main Window Toolbar

Button	Description	
	The Connect button allows you to connect to a sensor.	
26	Once you are connected, the Connect button will change for the Disconnect button.	
	The Disconnect button will then allow you to disconnect the sensor from the system.	
~	The Apply button allows you to confirm and apply the changes you just made to the system related to the sensor.	
	The Undo button allows you to come back to the information displayed before making your changes or before specifying parameters, for example.	
Ĩõ	The Camera button is used to take a high-resolution snapshot. You can also take a snapshot by going to Device > Action > Take Snapshot Taking a snapshot replaces the live video with a static image.	
	To return to the live video, click or go to Device > Action > Stop Live Update .	
0	Click the stop button or go to Device > Action > Stop Live Update to stop the continuous update of images and results.	
Ĩ	Click the video camera button or go to Device > Action > Start Live Update to start continuous update of images and results.	
	The fit-to-window button is available with the Tolling configuration only.	
F	Click the fit-to-window button to adjust the sensor view to the window 1.1	
when the button is not selected.		
1:1	The scaling button is available with the Tolling configuration only.	
	Click the scaling button to get the original ratio of the display.	
	This button is available with the Tolling configuration only.	
4 V	Click Zoom in to zoom in the display.	
0	This button is available with the Tolling configuration only.	
7-	Click Zoom out to zoom out the display.	

7.2. File Menu

Table	18:	File	Menu	Options
I UNIO			monia	optiono

Option	Description	
Load Configuration	This option allows the user to load the sensor configuration previously saved in the system as a *.lto file (Leddar [™] Configuration file). Choose the wanted sensor configuration from the Open dialog box. You can also get the configuration that was stored with a record file. In case of a system failure, you can load a sensor configuration and use this sensor configuration to collect signal data according to a set of parameters (scanning, distance measurements, etc.); and then, analyze the collected data or the information. In addition, if you have more than one sensor and you want to use the same configuration for all your sensors, then, you must load the previously saved configuration you want to use for all your sensors. In this case, make sure to rename all your sensors with a different name. The sensors named differently will use the same configuration. Refer to section 7.3.1.1 Device Name and How to Change it .	
Save Configuration As	This option allows the user to save the configuration for a specific sensor to a *.lto file (Leddar [™] Configuration file) from the Save as dialog box. This allows the user to save their settings and restore them in case of a system failure or to revert to earlier settings. In addition, if you have more than one sensor and you want to use the same configuration for all your sensors, save the configuration you want to use for all your sensors. In this case, make sure to rename all your sensors with a different name. The sensors named differently will use the same configuration. Refer to section 7.3.1.1 Device Name and How to Change it . To save a configuration, go to File > Save Configuration As .	
Start Recording	Start Recording (shortcut F9) : This option allows you to start recording detections in a *.Itl file that can later be reloaded and replayed.	
Stop Recording	Stop Recording (shortcut F9): This option allows to stop recording detections of the *.ltl file.Refer to section 7.2.1.2 How to Record a Scene for more details.	

Option	Description	
Import Configuration	To import a *.ltl file, go to File > Import Configuration.	
Record Replay	Once you have completed a recording, you can review it by selecting Replay in the File menu. The Position slider lets you move directly to a desired position. The Playback Speed slider lets you adjust the speed of the recording playback. Refer to section 7.2.1.3 How to Play a Recording for more details.	
Start Data Logging		
	Start Data Logging: Select this option to start the log of receiving data or the event log of the sensor. The event log displays under a text format.	
Stop Data Logging	Stop Data Logging : Select this option to stop the log of receiving data or the event log of the sensor. The event log displays under a text format.	
	Refer to section 7.2.2.2 How to Start and Stop Data Logging for more details.	
Quit	Select Quit to quit Leddar [™] Configuration software.	

7.2.1. Recordings (.ltl file)

Detection records provide a playback of detections recorded by a sensor. This visual information can be useful for verification, troubleshooting, or training purposes. Detection records allow for a full data playback stored in a *.ltl file that you can later reload and replay.

7.2.1.1. How to Edit Recording Settings

Click **Settings > Record**, the **Record Settings** window opens.

Detection records provide a playback of detections recorded by a sensor. This visual information can be useful for verification, troubleshooting, or training purposes.

Record Settings
Where Record directory:
C:\Data
Maximum file size (MB): 500
What Video Video Debug 1 Debug 2 Debug 3
Record Video As IPEG Images Quality: 50
MPEG Stream
How Long Maximum record time (minutes): 60
OK

Figure 22: Record Settings Window

- 1. Choose a directory where you want to save the record file.
- 2. Indicate a Maximum file size.
- 3. Only check **Debug 1**, **Debug 2**, and **Debug 3** if requested by LeddarTech to activate troubleshooting information. If activated, data acquisition rate (Hz) decreases.
- 4. Indicate a Maximum record time. Click OK.

The file name of the recording will be the sensor name followed by the date and time of the recording. The user can change the name of the file by changing the device name (refer to section **7.3.1.1 Device Name and How to Change it**) or after the recording.

The video section is not available with the Tolling configuration and will be grayed out.

7.2.1.2. How to Record a Scene

To start recording the detection scene:

- Under Settings menu > Preferences > Recording tab, indicate a maximum file size and a maximum record time. Refer to section 7.2.1.1 How to Edit Recording Settings for more details.
- 2. In the File menu, select Start Recording (shortcut F9).

When selecting this option, a counter will start at the bottom left of the main window next to the name of the sensor.

To stop recording the detection scene: In the File menu, select Stop Recording (shortcut F9).

7.2.1.3. How to Play a Recording

To access this menu, disconnect from the sensor and click **File > Replay**.

The **Record Replay** dialog box offers the same functions as a regular video player: there is a stop button, play button, and frame-by-frame forward and backward buttons.

The Start, End, and Extract buttons allow you to select a portion of the recording and extract it for further reference or analysis.

Once you have completed a recording, this option allows the user to review the recorded *.ltl file and to extract parts of this file.

1. Click File > Replay. The Record Replay window appears:

 Record Replay	
Click on button to select a record file	
N/A	
Position:	- - -
Playback Speed:	Start
	End
Соор	Extract

Figure 23: Record Replay Window at Opening

2. Click **Browse** to select a *.ltl file.

Record Replay	
C:\Users\user152\Desktop\Sensor AK	(15084-2018-11-28-10-30-04-773.ltl
2018-11-28 10:30:14 AM.999 (1516)	
Position:	· · · · · · · · · · · ·
Playback Speed:	Start 2018-11-28 10:30:05 AM.234
	End 2018-11-28 10:30:09 AM.839
Loop	Extract

Figure 24: Record Replay Window with File Open

Table 19: Record Replay Window

Button/Feature	Description	
	Click Browse to select the record file of the scene that you want to view again.	
	Once selected, the name of the file will appear next to the Browse button.	
	Click the play button to start the recording.	
	Click the stop button to end the recording.	
	Click the previous or next buttons to either move to the previous frame or move to the next frame.	
Position	Move the Position slider to go to a desired position in the recorded file.	
· · · · · · · · ·	The indication of the position is located above the stop and play buttons, for example: (1516) .	
Playback Speed	Move the Playback Speed slider to change the speed of the playback to see the scene or the detected object more accurately. The Playback Speed slider lets you adjust the speed of the recording playback; faster is to the left.	
Loop	Check this option to automatically loop back to the beginning of the recording.	
	The Start , End , and Extract buttons allow you to select a portion of the recording and extract it for further reference or analysis.	
Start	Click Start to tag the position to start the extraction.	
End	Click End to tag the position to end the extraction.	
Extract	Click Extract to extract a part of the scene and save it as a *.ltl file. Refer to section 7.2.1.4 How to Extract a Scene Segment for more details.	

7.2.1.4. How to Extract a Scene Segment

This feature allows you to extract a segment from a previously recorded scene.

- 1. Click be to select the record file to play.
- 2. In the Open window, select the desired record file and click **Open**.
- 3. Click to start the playback.

To extract a record file segment:

- 1. Set the Position slider to the position where you want to see the file segment start and click
 Start
- 2. Set the Position slider to the position where you want to see the file segment stop and click



Another option:

- 1. Play the record and stop it at a position of interest and click
- 2. Restart playing the record and stop it again at a position of interest and click End
- 3. Click Extract to extract and save that file segment.

If you want to specify a different speed for the playback, type the desired playback speed % or use the up and down arrows to specify the correct percentage (%).

4. Click

Record Replay		
C:\Users\user152\Desktop\Sensor AK15084-2018-11-28-10-30-04-773.ltl		
2018-11-28 10:30:14 AM.999 (1516)		
Position:		
Playback Speed:	Start 2018-11-28 10:30:05 AM.234 End 2018-11-28 10:30:09 AM.839	
Loop	Extract	



7.2.2. Data Logging (.txt file)

7.2.2.1. How to Setup Data Logging

To setup data logging file and launch data logging:

1. To configure a .txt recording, go to the **Settings > Data Logger**.

2. Click is to select where to save the log and click **OK**.

Data Log Settings	X
Folder:	
OK	Cancel

Figure 26: Data Log Settings Dialog Box

The file name of the recording will be the sensor name followed by the date and time of the recording. The user can change the name of the file by changing the sensor name (refer to section **7.3.1.1 Device Name and How to Change it**) or after the recording.

7.2.2.2. How to Start and Stop Data Logging

To access this option, click **File > Start Data Logging**.

The data logging function allows the user to output the data to a .txt file. This file can be imported in a software application, such as Microsoft Excel, for off-line analysis.

When selecting this option, a counter will start at the bottom left of the main window next to the name of the sensor.

To stop data logging, click **File > Stop Data Logging**.

7.3. Device Menu

Table 20: Device Menu Options

Option	Description
Device > Disconnect	Click to disconnect the sensor from the software and come back to Leddar™ Configuration.
Device > Apply Changes	Select this option to confirm the changes to the settings or click in the toolbar.
Device > Undo Changes	Select this option to undo the changes to the settings or click in the toolbar.
Device > Configuration > Name	Select this option to view and modify the name of the sensor. Refer to section 7.3.1.1 Device Name and How to Change it for more details.
Device > Configuration > Acquisition Settings	Select this option to access and modify the acquisition settings. Refer to section 7.3.2 Acquisition Settings for more details.
Device > Configuration > Network	Select this option to access the network settings. Refer to section 7.3.3 Network Settings for more details.
Device > Configuration > Orientation	This option is available with the Traffic configuration only. Select this option to move the camera to change its orientation. Refer to section 7.3.4 Orientation Control for more details.

Option	Description
Device > Configuration > Video	This option is available with the Traffic configuration only. Select this option to set the video parameters. Refer to section 7.3.5 Video Settings for more details.
Device > Action > Start/Stop Live Update	This option is available with the Traffic configuration only. Select this option to start or stop the live update or click to start or to stop the update in the toolbar. Refer to section 7.3.6 Action for more details.
Device > Action > Take Snapshot	This option is available with the Traffic configuration only. Select this option to take a snapshot or click in the toolbar. Refer to section 7.3.6 Action for more details.

7.3.1. Configurations

The following sections allow the user to configure settings such as the name of the sensor, acquisition settings, network configurations, orientation control, and video adjustment.

7.3.1.1. Device Name and How to Change it

To access this menu, click **Device > Configuration > Device Name**.

This option allows the user to view and modify the name of the sensor.

When you connect to the sensor the first time, a default name will display. The user can change the name of the sensor at any time with a connected sensor.

In the Device Name dialog box, in the Name field, type the new name of the sensor and click OK.

Device Na	me	X
Name:	DEFAULT NAME	
	ОК	Cancel

Figure 27: Device Name Dialog Box

- 2. A warning message in red appears.
- 3. Click ✓ in the toolbar to save your changes.

7.3.2. Acquisition Settings

To access this menu, click **Device > Configuration > Acquisition Settings**.

This menu allows the user to set the acquisition parameters for detection of objects or people. To apply new acquisition settings, click in the toolbar.

Acquisition Settings
Crosstalk removal
Static noise removal
Pulse width compensation
Overshoot management
Saturation compensation
Echoes crosstalk removal
Temperature compensation

Figure 28: Acquisition Settings Dialog Box

Table 21: Acquisition Settings Window

Parameter	Description	Range
Crosstalk Removal	Inter-segment interference noise removal. Crosstalk is a phenomenon inherent to all multiple segments time-of-flight sensors. It causes a degradation of the distance measurement accuracy of an object when one or more objects with significantly higher reflectivity are detected in other segments at a similar distance.	Enable Disable
Static Noise Removal	When selected, this parameter enhances measurements by subtracting the constant electronic noise present at the beginning of signals.	Enable Disable
Pulse Width Compensation	The objects in the sensor field of detection create a signature in the full-waveform signal called pulses. The pulse detector analyzes the full-waveform signal to recognize these pulses and compute their distance. By nature, time-of-flight sensor using full-waveform analysis can detect several distinct objects with a single photodiode element. The detected pulses have specific amplitudes based on their distance from the sensor and on the reflectivity of the objects. It is well known that pulses of small amplitudes do not lead to accurate and precise distance measurements. Consequently, the algorithm removes all pulses with amplitudes under a given threshold. This threshold depends on the acquisition settings of the sensor.	Enable Disable
Overshoot Management	When selected, this parameter improves the detection of false measurements caused by specific signal shapes. For example, this may occur when strongly reflecting objects are present in the field of view.	Enable Disable
Saturation Compensation	When selected, this parameter activates the advanced distance computation algorithm for very strong (saturated) signals. This computation uses slightly more computing power to enhance the quality of the distance measurements of saturated light pulses. The algorithm classifies the detected pulses based on their shape. The sensor determines which pulses are saturated and which have a normal shape. Saturated pulse occurs when the signal backscattered by the object is so strong that the full-waveform signal is clipped. If not treated, this phenomenon creates an important degradation of the distance measurement accuracy. It is why a saturation compensation algorithm is executed when saturated pulses are detected.	Enable Disable

Parameter	Description	Range
Echoes Crosstalk Removal	When selected, this parameter can further increase accuracy by removing secondary echoes that might still be present in adjacent segments after applying the first stage of crosstalk removal.	Enable Disable
Temperature Compensation	The signal processing algorithm also embeds an advanced temperature compensation scheme which attenuates the distance measurement drift over large and sudden sensor temperature changes. The temperature compensation also ensures optimal accuracy over the full operating temperature range.	Enable Disable

7.3.3. Network Settings

To access this menu, click **Device > Configuration > Network**.

This window allows the user to view and modify the IP configuration and communication protocol configuration. The network configuration applies after a system reboot.

Network Settings			X
IP Address:	192.168.0.10	Address Mode	OK
Subnet Mask:	255.255.255.0	Static	
Gateway Address:	192.168.0.1		Cancel
Ethernet PHY Mode	Auto-Negotiation	•	

Figure 29: Network Settings Configuration Window

Parameter	Description	
IP Address	The IP address attributed to the sensor.	
Subnet Mask	This defines and identifies the local network within which DHCP addresses will be attributed to sensors.	
Gateway Address	By default, this is the same as the Server Address. However, a distinct gateway address is required if you need to access another subnet, that is one or more sensors that are not on the local network.	
Ethernet PHY Mode	 There are five Ethernet PHY modes available: Auto-Negotiation 10 Mbps Half-Duplex 10 Mbps Full-Duplex 100 Mbps Half-Duplex 100 Mbps Full-Duplex 	
Address Mode	 There are two address modes available: DHCP (Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol) Static Refer to Appendix A (part A or B) for more details. 	

Table 22: Network Configuration Window

7.3.4. Orientation Control (Pan/Tilt Adjustment)

To access this menu, click **Device > Configuration > Orientation**.

This menu is available with the Traffic configuration only.

This feature allows the user to adjust the orientation of the sensor.

In the Orientation Control dialog box, use the arrows to move the sensor so that the active grid is centered on the zones to monitor.

The **Step Size** field sets the move, in degrees, for each click on an arrow button (0.1 to 1.0 degrees).



Figure 30: Orientation Control Window

The start of the first lane line must match the physical delimitation of the first lane and the reference line must be perpendicular to the road; this means that they both should line up with the reference mark and the marking or object it was aligned with.



Figure 31: Active Grid Application Example

7.3.5. Video Settings

To access this menu, click **Device > Configuration > Video**.

This menu is available with the Traffic configuration only.



Video activation and settings choices can affect the detection performance in real time.

Video Settings
Camera Intensity: 🗹 Manual
Video Parameters Bit rate (kbps): 20
Real bit rate (kbps): 17.4 • Low speed connection (WAN)
High speed connection (LAN) Resolution: QVGA(320x240)
Close

Figure 32: Video Settings Window

Table 23: Video Settings

Parameter	Description
Camera Intensity	Select the Manual checkbox to manually change the camera intensity with the Position slider. If you clear the checkbox, the intensity will adjust itself automatically.
	For a darker image, move the position slider to the left and for a lighter image move the position slider to the right.
Bit rate (kbps)	1 to 4000 kilobits per second

Parameter	Description
Real bit rate (kbps)	Real bit rate in kilobits per second.
Low speed connection (WAN)	Select this option to get a low speed connection.
High speed connection (LAN)	Select this option to get a high-speed connection.
Resolution	320 x 240 QVGA (Quarter Video Graphics Array display standard)

7.3.6. Action

To access this menu, click **Device > Configuration > Action**.

This menu is available with the Traffic configuration only.

This menu allows you to start or stop a live update (**Device > Action > Start/Stop Live Update**) or take a snapshot (**Device > Action > Take Snapshot**).

You can also use shortcuts by clicking the following buttons in the toolbar.

Table 24: Action Buttons Description

Button	Description		
0	Click the stop button or go to Device > Action > Stop Live Update to stop the continuous update of images and results.		
	Click the video camera button or go to Device > Action > Start Live Update to start continuous update of images and results. Video activation and settings choices can affect the detection performance in real time.		
Î	The Camera button is used to take a high-resolution snapshot. You can also take a snapshot by going to Device > Action > Take Snapshot Taking a snapshot replaces the live video with a static image. To return to the live video, click the video camera button or go to Device > Action > Stop Live Update .		

7.4. View Menu

Table	25:	View	Menu	Options
-------	-----	------	------	---------

Menu	Description			
View > Device State	Select this option to view sensor information.			
	Refer to section 7.4.1 Device State for more details.			
	This option is available with the Traffic configuration only.			
View > Image	Select this option to get a live view from the camera sensor.			
	Refer to section 7.4.2 Image Activation for more details.			
	This option is available with the Traffic configuration only.			
View > Active Grid	Select this option to get the sensor detection zone overlay on the live view from the camera sensor.			
	Refer to section 7.4.3 Grid Activation for more details.			
View > Raw Detections	Select this option to view the displayed raw data and define the desired detection parameters.			
	Refer to section 7.4.4 Raw Detections for more details.			
	This option is available with the Traffic configuration only.			
View > Raw Detections Graph	Select this option to view the detection scene in 2D.			
	Refer to section 7.4.5 Raw Detections Graph for more details.			

7.4.1. Device State

To access this menu, click **View > Device State**.

This window allows the user to view information about the sensor.

Device State - DEFAULT NAME			
Temperature Device : 102.2 F Sensor chip: 118.4 F	Timers & Load 0 11:13:22 6 00:30:58 CPU Load: 50%		
Device Information Serial number: DTEC12345678-PO Versions: FPGA: 202.26 Software: 2560 (Upgrade) CRC: 4F23C1A8 Part numbers: Hardware: 75A0021-1 Software: 53A0018-X Ethernet address: F0-C8-8C-00-00			

Figure 33: Device State Dialog Box

Table	26:	Device	State	Information
TUDIC	20.	DCVICC	oluic	mormation

Parameter	Description			
Temperature	This section indicates the temperature of the sensor and of its chip.			
Timers & Load	This feature gives information in number of days, hours, minutes, and seconds about two types of activities of a sensor. The first line indicates how long it has been since the last sensor reset; the second line indicates how long it has been since the last power cut or outage. The CPU load indicates how much of the sensor processor capacity is in use.			
Serial Number	The serial number of the sensor as attributed by LeddarTech.			
Versions	FPGA: the firmware version.Software: the software version of the sensor.CRC: Software Cyclic Redundancy Check for integrity validation.			

Parameter	Description
Part Numbers	This provides the Hardware and Software part numbers of a sensor, as attributed by LeddarTech.
Ethernet Address	Also called the Ethernet MAC address, this is a unique identifier of the sensor on the network.

7.4.2. Image Activation

To access this menu, click **View > Image**.

This menu is available with the Traffic configuration only.

This option allows the user to activate or deactivate the camera of the sensor and get a live view.

When the image is activated, you can take a snapshot of the live image by clicking image will freeze.

7.4.3. Grid Activation

To access this menu, click **View > Active Grid**.

This menu is available with the Traffic configuration only.

This option allows the user to activate or deactivate the grid that appears on the main window.

To change the color of the grid, go to **Preferences** and select Leddar[™] T16. Refer to section **7.5.3 Preferences** for more details.

7.4.4. Raw Detections

To access this menu, click **View > Raw Detections**.

This window allows the user to view detection values. It also provides filters to isolate segments and detection parameters.

An object crossing the beam of the sensor is detected and measured. This detection is qualified by its segment position, distance, and amplitude. The quantity of light reflected to the sensor by the object generates the amplitude. The bigger the reflection is, the higher the amplitude will be.

Raw Detections				
Min Amplitudo	Segm	Distance	Amplitude	Flags
win Amplitude:	1	1.86	25.96	01
0	2	4.28	61.16	01
Max Amplitude:	3	4.39	102.62	01
1024.0	4	4.32	113.68	09
1024.0	5	4.72	95.32	01
Min Distance:	6	5.59	47.10	01
0	7	5.42	72.14	01
Max Distance:	8	5.29	81.48	01
Iviax Distance.	9	5.78	57.26	01
100.0	10	6.12	78.13	01
	11	6.06	80.50	01
▼ 1 ▼ 9	12	5.98	76.55	01
2 10	13	5.92	73.21	01
3 11	14	5.62	74.60	01
	15	5.01	87.59	01
₩ 4 ₩ 12	16	4.91	42.06	01
5 🚺 13				
6 🚺 14				
7 15				
✓ 8 ✓ 16				
Freeze				

Figure 34: Raw Detections Window

Parameters	Description	Range
Min Amplitude Max Amplitude	The value entered in the Min Amplitude box shows only detections of amplitude higher or equal to that value. The value entered in the Max Amplitude box will show only detections of amplitude lower or equal to that value. The maximum amplitude is set at 1024.0 by default.	0.0 to 1024.0
	Setting a value in both fields will result in a range of amplitude to display.	
Min Distance Max Distance	The minimum and maximum distance from where to detect an object. Maximum distance is set at 100.0 by default.	0 to 200
Segment	Select the segments that you want to display in the detection results. $\begin{array}{c c} \hline & 1 & \hline & 9 \\ \hline & 2 & \hline & 10 \\ \hline & 2 & \hline & 10 \\ \hline & 3 & \hline & 11 \\ \hline & 4 & \hline & 12 \\ \hline & 5 & \hline & 13 \\ \hline & 6 & \hline & 14 \\ \hline & 7 & \hline & 7 & 15 \\ \hline & 8 & \hline & 16 \end{array}$	1 to 16
Freeze	Check the Freeze box to freeze the raw data and view the information.	Enable Disable
Distance (m)	Position of the detected object.	Varies
Amplitude	Quantity of light reflected by the object and measured by the sensor.	0 to 128
Flags	The Flags parameter provides the status information that indicates the measurement type (8-bit status encoded as a bit field). See Table 28.	1 to 255

Table 27: Raw Detections Parameters

Table 28: Flag Value Description

Bit position	Bit = 0	Bit = 1
0	Invalid measurement	Valid measurement
1	Reserved	Reserved
2	Reserved	Reserved
3	Reserved	Saturated
4	Reserved	Reserved
5	Reserved	Reserved
6	Reserved	Reserved
7	Reserved	Reserved

7.4.5. Raw Detections Graph

To access this menu, click **View > Raw Detections Graph**.

The Raw Detection Graph window is available with the Traffic configuration only.

The raw detections graph window allows the user to view the segments.



Figure 35: Raw Detection Graph Example

The measurements are represented in a symbolic graph containing the 16 segments (white lines) originating from the sensor. Detections are drawn as arcs in their corresponding segments. Only valid measurements are displayed. A more detailed description of the measurements can be obtained in the Raw Detections dialog box (refer to section **7.4.4 Raw Detections**).

The X and Y numbers displayed at the bottom are the mouse cursor position coordinates.

The display in the main window can be panned, viewed and zoomed in different ways. Panning and zooming is done according to the mouse cursor position.

You can move up, down, and sideways by clicking and dragging the display.

The window opens with default scale settings.

7.4.5.1. Setting Scale Areas and Detection Points

The horizontal and vertical scales can be changed manually by entering new values in the fields accessible by clicking the areas shown in Figure 36, Figure 37, Figure 38, and Figure 39 below.

Click next to the desired number to change the vertical and horizontal scales independently.

To apply the changes, click anywhere in the main window.

See Figure 40 and Figure 41 below to view detection points information examples.



Figure 36: Vertical Scale Setting Areas (Traffic Configuration)



Figure 37: Vertical Scale Setting Areas (Tolling Configuration)



Figure 38: Horizontal Scale Setting Areas (Traffic Configuration)



Figure 39: Horizontal Scale Setting Areas (Tolling Configuration)
You can hover the mouse on a segment to get the following information:

- Segment
- Distance (in meter)
- Amplitude



Figure 40: Detection Point Coordinates (Traffic Configuration)



Figure 41: Detection Point Coordinates (Tolling Configuration)

7.4.5.2. Detection Scene Short Keys

Short keys allows you to pan or zoom the display of the detection scene.

Mouse wheel: to zoom in or zoom out vertically and horizontally (Traffic and Tolling configurations).

Mouse click: to move the detection scene vertically and horizontally (Traffic and Tolling configurations).

Shift + mouse wheel: to resize the detection scene horizontally (Traffic and Tolling configurations).

Ctrl + mouse wheel: to resize the detection scene/enlarge the segments (Traffic configuration only).

7.5. Settings Menu

The Settings menu includes the Record, Data Logger, Preferences and Access Levels.

7.5.1. Record Settings

To access this menu, click **Settings > Record**.

Record Settings
Where Record directory:
C:\Data
Maximum file size (MB): 500
What
Video Debug 1 Debug 2 Debug 3
Record Video As
JPEG Images Quality: 50
O MPEG Stream
How Long
Maximum record time (minutes): 60
OK Cancel

Figure 42: Recording Settings Window

Table 29: Recording Settings

Feature	Description	
Record Directory	The record directory is the folder to which all record files will be saved. These files are in a proprietary format, with extension *.ltl, and can only be opened and viewed with the Leddar™ Configuration software.	
Maximum File Size	Record files can be quite large. Set the maximum file size as needed. The recording stops for the current file once it reaches the	

Feature	Description	
	maximum file size and automatically switches the recording to another file. This is to keep record files of manageable sizes.	
Video	This option is available with the Traffic configuration only. This feature is needed to record the live images with the data. When not selected, only the data will be recorded. Video activation and the debug mode set for recording can affect the detection performance in real time.	
Debug	These check boxes are reserved for the use of LeddarTech technicians.	
	This option is available with the Traffic configuration only. Two types of video recordings can be used: JPEG Images records a series of JPEG images and MPEG Stream records an MPEG video format. The MPEG stream format is recommended when using a local area network (LAN) connection. The guality is as good as the	
Record Video As	JPEG images but generates a smaller file size. The JPEG image format is recommended when recording remotely through a wide area network (WAN) connection. Reducing the JPEG image quality can help reduce file size by compressing the JPEG images that are contained in the record. A level of 75% to 80% usually provides acceptable image quality and a reasonable file size.	
Maximum Record Time	The value entered as the Maximum record time determines the length of the time for recording. At the end of that period, recording will stop even if the file size has not reached its maximum.	



Refer to section 7.2.1.1 How to Edit Recording Settings for more details.

7.5.2. Data Logger

To access this menu, click **Settings > Data Logger**.

Data Log Settings	X
Folder: C:\Data	
ОК	Cancel

Figure 43: Data Logger Dialog Box

Refer to section 7.2.2.2 How to Setup Data Logging for more details.

7.5.3. Preferences

To access this menu, click **Settings > Preferences**.

This menu allows the user to change various settings related to window display.

Preferences			X
General Units Error Log	Distance unit meter	© foot	
Network/USB Leddar™ Configuration Leddar T16	 Temperature unit Celsius 	Fahrenheit	🔘 Kelvin
		ОК	Cancel

Figure 44: Preferences Options Window

With the Tolling option, *Leddar T16* does not appear in the General menu.

Option	Description	Range
Units	The units that are applied to distances displayed in the Leddar™ Configuration software.	Meter Foot
Temperature Unit	The units for displaying temperatures of sensors.	Celsius Fahrenheit Kelvin
Error Log	Select Show error log to display error messages that are logged during the current session. Error messages are displayed in the Error Log box.	Enable Disable
Network	Select the network timeout, in seconds, to decide how long you want to wait for an operation before your request for that operation is canceled (timed out) on a network.	2 to 30 seconds
Leddar™ Configuration	The main window size can be manually set, and the preferences selected before connecting to a sensor. When Fixed aspect ratio is selected, you can enlarge the Leddar™ Configuration main window while keeping the display height and width ratio. When both features are selected, you can resize the Leddar™ Configuration main window while keeping the display height and width ratio.	N/A
Leddar™ T16	This option is available with the Traffic configuration only. Select this option to change the color and opacity of the grid. When the Fit image to window (no zoom) feature is selected it resizes the image, so it fits the main window size. When cleared, it provides a zooming feature: Clear the check box, click the display, and then use the mouse wheel to zoom in and out.	Opacity: 0 to 255

Table 30: Preferences Window Options and Settings

7.5.4. Access Level

To access this menu, click **Settings > Access Level**.

You can also change license by double-clicking on User located at the bottom of the main window.

The Leddar[™] Configuration software has two access levels: The User operation mode (by default at startup) for normal use and the Technician operation mode which is password protected for approved personnel use only.

In the Enter Master Password dialog box, type the password provided by LeddarTech.

Enter Password	X
Password:	
ОК	Cancel

Figure 45: Enter Password Dialog Box

For more information on licenses, contact LeddarTech Support at support@leddartech.com.

7.6. Help Menu

The Help menu includes User Guide, Leddar[™] SDK Help, and About options.

7.6.1. User Guide

To access this menu, click **Help > User Guide**.

The User Guide option allows the user to select and consult a PDF version of a user guide directly from Leddar™ Configuration.

Select a user guide in the list to open a PDF version of the selected user guide.

7.6.2. Leddar[™] SDK Help

To access this menu, click **Help > Leddar™ SDK Help**.

The Leddar[™] SDK is an interface to allow programmers to integrate sensors in their products. C language interface available for Windows platforms.

For more information, open the SDK help.

7.6.3. About

To access this menu, click **Help > About**.

The **About** option allows the user to know which software version is currently used and the software part number. These can be used when contacting LeddarTech support.

8. Communication Protocol

The Leddar T16 Sensor uses LeddarTech's proprietary communication protocol (TCP/IP socketbased protocol called Ipv4).

Refer to the *Communication Protocol User Guide* provided by LeddarTech for more information about the communication protocol of the sensor.

9. Troubleshooting

Problem	Action to Take	
No power	Verify that your sensor is connected. Verify that your sensor is connected to an appropriated PoE+ port.	
The optical window is damaged	Contact LeddarTech Support.	
The Ethernet connection is not available	Verify that your computer is configured with a static IP address. Verify that the cable is well secured in the Ethernet port. If the cabling connection seems secure, verify that the Ethernet link between the control computer and the sensor is valid using the ping command.	
The sensor is not detected in Leddar™ Configuration	Verify that the power supply of the sensor. Verify that the sensor is detected by your network board. Use the appropriate Ethernet connection mode and addressing in function of your network architecture.	
The sensor is not detected by your network board	Verify if the LEDs of your Ethernet port are blinking.	
The LEDs Ethernet port is not blinking	Verify the setting of your Network board. The IP setting shall be set as in Appendix A. Verify if the Ethernet cable is well connected.	



In the case of failure of the Leddar T16, please contact LeddarTech Support at <u>support@leddartech.com</u>.

10. Maintenance

Following this maintenance guideline will ensure optimal performance of the product.

Manipulation	Avoid touching the optical surface as fingerprints can permanently damage optical coatings.
Cleaning of the optics	 Remove dust using blow dry compressed air. Clean using lens tissue or isopropanol.



To safely perform maintenance operations of the Leddar T16 Sensor, please contact LeddarTech Support at support@leddartech.com.

11. Warranty

PLEASE READ CAREFULLY V2.0 2018-06-01

LeddarTech® Limited Warranty

1. Application. This limited warranty (this "Warranty") from LeddarTech Inc. ("LeddarTech") applies to all LeddarTech products referenced on the LeddarTech website at leddaretch.com (each, a "Product"). This Warranty does not apply to any prototype units of the Product.

2. Limited Product Warranty. Subject to the terms and conditions of this Warranty, LeddarTech warrants to any purchaser of a Product ("Customer") that the Product will be free from defects in material and workmanship, when used in accordance with the specifications sheet and User Guide provided by LeddarTech for such Product. LeddarTech shall not be liable under this Warranty if the alleged problem in the Product was caused by misuse, negligence, improper installation or testing of the Product, unauthorized attempts to disassemble the Product for repair or any other reason, or by accident, fire, or other hazard or the combination of the Product with any third party product (a "Combination Product"). No representative of LeddarTech or its authorized resellers are authorized to make any change or modification to this Warranty or express any other warranties with respect to the Products.

3. Warranty Period. The Warranty is valid for a period of 12 months (the "Warranty Period") from the shipment date to customer of any Product sold by LeddarTech and/or its authorized resellers.

4. Warranty Procedures. Any claim under this Warranty must be submitted in writing by Customer to LeddarTech promptly after discovery of occurrence of a suspected defect in materials or workmanship, and in any case prior to the expiry of the Warranty Period, describing with reasonable specificity such defect. Timely notification will permit Customer to obtain a Return Authorization Number (RMA) from LeddarTech's Customer Service Department which will indicate return procedures and terms and conditions of such returns. A proof of purchase of the Product, such as an invoice or a receipt certifying the validity of the Warranty, must be presented in order to obtain Warranty coverage.

The Product or part shall be returned to LeddarTech, accompanied by the Return Authorization Number with prepaid shipping charges. Customer must insure the shipment or accept the risk of loss or damage during the shipment. Customer shall also pay any tariff or duty applicable to the return of the defective part or Product.

LeddarTech shall be entitled to require delivery by Customer of whatever proof it requests to evaluate the validity of the claim. Customer agrees that any claim under this Warranty will be subject to LeddarTech's determination of validity and if LeddarTech determines the claim is valid, any such claim is expressly limited, at the option of LeddarTech, to either: (i) reimbursing the purchase price of the Product found to be defective, (ii) repairing at no cost any defective Product or parts thereof, or (ii) replacing the defective Product. This Warranty is the sole remedy of Customer for any defect in the Product. LeddarTech will be responsible for returning any repaired or replacement Product to Customer.

If after evaluation by LeddarTech the defect is not covered by this Warranty, LeddarTech may provide a quote to Customer for the cost of repair of the Product. Any such Product or part shall be shipped back to Customer at Customer's cost.

The original Warranty Period shall not be extended by any replacement, but the remaining Warranty Period shall continue in effect and be applicable under the terms and conditions of this Warranty to the replaced Product.

5. Disclaimer. THE WARRANTY IS GIVEN IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, LIABILITIES OR OBLIGATIONS OF LEDDARTECH, EXPRESSED AND IMPLIED, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND NON-INFRINGEMENT AND ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES ARISING FROM COURSE OF DEALING, USAGE OF TRADE, OR COURSE OF PERFORMANCE.

6. Limitation of Liability. LEDDARTECH, ITS PARENT COMPANIES, SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES, THEIR OFFICERS, DIRECTORS, EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS ("LEDDARTECH PARTIES") SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOSS OF PROFITS, LOSS OF USE, DOWNTIME, LOSS OF DATA, FAILURE TO DETECT ANY FLAW IN ANY SUBJECT MATTER OF ANY TEST, LOSS OF GOODWILL, DELAY IN PERFORMANCE, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, PRODUCT LIABILITY OR ANY CAUSE OF ACTION IN CONNECTION WITH THE USE OR HANDLING OF THE PRODUCTS BY CUSTOMER OR ANY PERSON AUTHORIZED BY CUSTOMER. Some jurisdictions do not allow exclusion or limitation of consequential or incidental or special damages, so the above limitations or exclusions may not apply to you. This warranty gives you specific legal rights, and you may also have other rights, all of which vary from jurisdiction to jurisdiction.

7. Indemnification. Customer shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the LeddarTech Parties ("Indemnified parties") from any third party claims, demands, lawsuits, damages, liabilities, including attorney's fees and court costs, judgments and settlements of every kind ("Claims") arising out of, connected with, or resulting from any acts, duties, obligations or omissions of Customer or that may be made for injuries (including death) to persons or damage to property, including theft, and resulting in whole or in part in connection with the use, installation, removal, replacement, manipulation and/or repair of the Products and any Combination Product.

8. Software. All software embodied in or used in connection with the Products is provided to Customer subject to the terms and conditions of the End-User License Agreement to which Customer must agree to be bound as part of the installation of the said software. Warranties, if any, for the software are contained in such separate End-User License Agreement.

9. Entire Agreement. This document contains the entire agreement of the parties regarding the subject matter of the Warranty and supersedes all previous communications, representations, understandings and agreements, either oral or written, between Customer and LeddarTech.

10. Governing Law: This Warranty shall be governed by and is to be interpreted in accordance with the laws of Quebec and the laws of Canada applicable therein without reference to its conflict of law provisions and excluding the United Nations Convention on Contracts for the International Sale of Goods. The parties agree that the Courts having jurisdiction in the judicial district of Quebec (Province of Québec) shall have exclusive jurisdiction to hear any litigation resulting from the interpretation, application or execution of this Warranty.

LeddarTech's Customer Service Department can be reached during regular business hours (Monday to Friday, 8:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Eastern Time) by calling (418) 653-9000 or 1 855 865-9900. Visit www.leddartech.com

12. Technical Support

For technical inquiries, please contact LeddarTech technical support by registering online at <u>https://support.leddartech.com</u> to:

- Follow up on your requests
- Find quick answers to questions
- Get valuable updates

Or by contacting us at:

- + 1 418 653 9000
- + 1 855 865 9900
- <u>support@leddartech.com</u>

8:30 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. Eastern Standard Time

To facilitate the support, please have in hand all relevant information such as part numbers, serial numbers, pictures (if possible).

LeddarTech Inc. 4535, boul. Wilfrid-Hamel, #240 Quebec QC G1P 2J7 Canada

www.leddartech.com

13. Index

2

2D solid-state LiDAR.....17

А

Accuracy	23
Active grid	14
Amplitude	14, 65, 73
Area of interest	14

С

Camera	14
Cat 5e Ethernet cable	95
Celsius	78
Channel	14
Communication Interface	29
communication protocol	.57, 81
Communication Protocol User Guide	81
Connection window information	36
Crosstalk	14
Crosstalk Removal	55

D

Data Logger	78
Debug	46, 76
Detection	14
detection measurements	
Detection Range	23, 24
detection scene	74
detection zone	14, 61
Diffuser lens	19
Disk Space	29
distance	22
Distance	65, 73
DLL files	

Е

Echoes Crosstalk Removal	56
Error Log	78
Ethernet Address	63
Ethernet cable	93, 95

F

Fahrenheit	78
Field of View	14
Fit image to window (no zoom)	78
Fixed aspect ratio	78
Flags	65
flash illumination	17
FOV	14

G

grid	14, 30, 58, 63, 78
Grid	61
Grid Activation	63

Н

Height	24
Horizontal FOV	23
Humidity	29

L

install and orient the Sensor	
interface	80
Interface	29
IP Configuration	

L

laser emitter	15
Leddar	15
LeddarCDemo	101
Length	24
Lens	18, 19
Light emitter	19
Load Configuration	44
Itl file	45

Μ

Max Amplitude	65
Max Distance	65
Measurement Rate	23
measurements	68

Memory	29
MEMS mirror	19
Min Amplitude	65
Min Distance	65
mounting bracket	30
Mounting Threads	24

Ν

network static IP	
Number of Segments	23

0

Ocular Safety	13
operating performance	16
Operating System	29
Overshoot Management	55

Ρ

pan	31
Part Number	13
Part Numbers	63
photodetector array	15
Photodetector Array Size	23
Photodiode array	19
Position of the target	16
Power Supply	29
Pulse Width Compensation	55

R

Receiver lens	19
Recorder	78
Reflectivity of the target	16
Replay	45
Resolution	23
RJ45 connector	95
roll	

S

Saturation Compensation	
Save Configuration	44
SDK	80
Segment	14, 65, 73
Sensor orientation	

Sensor position adjustments	31
Serial Number	13, 62
short keys	74
Size of the target	16
software part number	80
software version	80
Solid-State Scanning LiDAR	17
Start Data Logging	45
Start Recording	44
static IP	89
Static IP Configuration	89
Static Noise Removal	55
status of a sensor	35
Stop Data Logging	45
Stop Recording	44
support	86
Support	11

Т

Temperature	29, 62
Temperature Compensation	56
Test Conditions	23, 24
tilt31	
Time of flight	15
Time of Flight	14
Timers & Load	62
Traffic and Tolling Configurations	18
txt file	51
tilt 31 Time of flight Time of Flight Timers & Load Traffic and Tolling Configurations txt file	23, 24 15 14 62 18 51

U

Units	78
User's Guide	80

V

Versions	62
Video	76

W

Warning Label	13
Water tightness	29
Wavelength	23
Weigh	24
Width	24

Appendix A. Static IP and DHCP Configuration Under Windows 7 and Up

Part A – Configuring the network for static IP mode.



1. In Control Panel > Network and Internet > Network and Sharing Center, select Change adapter settings.

Network and Sharing Centre			_	×
🗧 🔶 👻 🛧 🕎 > Contro	ol Panel > Network and Internet > Network and Sharing Centre	~ Ū	Search Control Panel	Q
Control Panel Home	View your basic network information and set up connections			
Change adapter settings	View your active networks			
Change advanced sharing settings	Change your networking settings			
	Set up a new connection or network Set up a broadband, dial-up or VPN connection, or set up a router or access point.			
	Troubleshoot problems Diagnose and repair network problems or get troubleshooting information.			
See also HomeGroup Infrared Internet Options Windows Defender Firewall				

Figure 46: Change Adapter Settings





Figure 47: Ethernet Network Option

3. In the Ethernet Properties window, select Internet Protocol Version 4 (TCP/IPv4), then click on Properties.

🖣 Ethernet Properties X
Networking Sharing
Connect using:
Intel(R) Ethemet Connection (4) I219-LM
Configure This connection uses the following items:
Client for Microsoft Networks File and Printer Sharing for Microsoft Networks QoS Packet Scheduler Internet Protocol Version 4 (TCP/IPv4) Microsoft Network Adapter Multiplexor Protocol Microsoft LLDP Protocol Driver Internet Protocol Version 6 (TCP/IPv6)
< >
Install Uninstall Properties Description Transmission Control Protocol/Internet Protocol. The default wide area network protocol that provides communication across diverse interconnected networks.
OK Cancel

Figure 48: Ethernet Properties

- 4. Select **Use the following IP address** and insert an IP address different than the sensor, for example: 192.168.000.100 in the IP address field.
- 5. Insert the same subnet mask as the sensor (**255.255.255.0** by default) in Subnet Mask field.

Internet Protocol Version 4 (TCP/IPv4) Properties						
General						
You can get IP settings assigned automatically if your network supports this capability. Otherwise, you need to ask your network administrator for the appropriate IP settings.						
Obtain an IP address automatical	ly					
Use the following IP address:						
IP address:	192 . 168 . 000 . 100					
Subnet mask:	255.255.255.0					
Default gateway:	1					
Obtain DNS server address autor	natically					
Use the following DNS server add	lresses:					
Preferred DNS server:						
Alternative DNS server:	· · ·					
Ualidate settings upon exit	Advanced					
	OK Cancel					

Figure 49: IP Address and Subnet Mask

Refer to section **6 Installing Leddar™ Configuration** once the configuration is done.

Part B – Configuring the network for DHCP mode

1. Connect the Ethernet cable (POE+ connection) into the Ethernet port of the sensor and the other end of the Ethernet cable to your computer or switch. See Figure 50.



Figure 50: Sensor Connection to POE+ Switch

2. In the network connections, make sure that the TCP/IPV4 is set to automatic.

B.	
Ethernet Properties	X Internet Protocol Version 4 (TCP/IPv4) Properties
Networking Sharing	General Alternate Configuration
Connect using:	You can get IP settings assigned automatically if your network supports
Intel(R) Ethemet Connection (4) I219-LM	this capability. Otherwise, you need to ask your network administrator for the appropriate IP settings.
Configure	Obtain an IP address automatically
I his connection uses the following items:	Use the following IP address:
Client for Microsoft Networks	IP address:
Gos Packet Scheduler	Subash madu
✓ Internet Protocol Version 4 (TCP/IPv4)	Subnet mask:
L Microsoft Network Adapter Multiplexor Protocol	Default gateway:
Microsoft LLDP Protocol Driver	
✓ Internet Protocol Version 6 (TCP/IPv6)	 Obtain DNS server address automatically
	Use the following DNS server addresses:
Install Uninstall Properties	Preferred DNS server:
Description	Alternate DNS server:
Transmission Control Protocol/Internet Protocol. The default	
across diverse interconnected networks.	Validate settings upon exit Advanced
OK Cano	OK Cancel

Figure 51: Ethernet Properties

Figure 52: IP Address and Subnet Mask

Refer to section **6 Installing Leddar™ Configuration** once the configuration is done.

Appendix B. Making Connectors for the Ethernet Cable

A Cat 5e RJ45 Ethernet cable must link the sensor to a network or a computer. You must install a connector at both ends of the Ethernet cable. To do so, use the supplied RJ45 connector kits. See Figure 53 and Figure 61.



Figure 53: RJ45 Industrial Modular Connector Kit for the Sensor Side of the Ethernet Cable

Required tools and materials

Tools

Material

- 1. RJ45 crimp tool
- 2. 18 mm, open-end wrench
- 3. Cutter

If customer supplied: shielded Cat 5e cable (Belden 7929A recommended)

To make the Ethernet cable connectors:

1. Strip the cable jacket to approximately 1 in. (25 mm) and feed the cable through the plug housing (IP67 industrial modular connector).



LeddarTech is not responsible of water infiltration if the IP67 industrial modular connector is not used.



Figure 54: Ethernet Cable with the Jacket Stripped and Plug Housing

2. Untwist wire pairs and separate them.



Figure 55: Twisted Pairs

3. Align the wires according to the T568B standard (see Figure 56).



1: White-orange 2: Orange 3: White-green 4: Blue 5: White-blue 6: Green 7: White-brown 8: Brown





1

Figure 56: Cat 5e T568B Wiring Diagram

4. Cut the wires and insert them in the load bar.



Figure 57: Wires in the Load Bar

- 5. Slide the load bar until it sits against the cable jacket and cut the wires to approximately 1/4 in. (5 mm).
- 6. Trim the remaining wire tips and retract the cable to leave about 1/32 in. (1 mm) of wire.



Figure 58: Trimming the Wires

7. Insert the load bar inside the RJ45 plug all the way until the wire tips are seated against the inside wall of the plug housing.



Figure 59: Inserting the Load Bar and Wires in the RJ45 Plug

8. Crimp the connector with the crimp tool.



Figure 60: Crimping the RJ45 Plug

- 9. Depress the connector tab and pull the cable until the connector is fully seated inside the plug housing.
- 10. Hold the plug in position and rotate the cable fitting clockwise until tightened to a torque of 20 lbs-in. (2 Nm).
- 11. Install the sensor as described in Section 5 Installing the Leddar T16 Sensor.
- 12. Connect the Ethernet cable to the sensor as follows:
 - a) Align the tab of the RJ45 connector with the upper slot of the RJ45 jack on the sensor.
 - b) Align the three pins of the plug housing ring with the three notches of the receptacle on the sensor.
 - c) Press and rotate the plug housing until the pins "click" into the notches.
- 13. Using another RJ45 connector and the strain relief for the computer or network side make the cable connector as explained in steps 1 through 8.

In step one, instead of using the plug housing, use the yellow strain relief (see Figure 61).



Figure 61: RJ45 Strain Relief Connector Kit for the Other End of the Ethernet Cable

14. Repeat steps 1 through 13 for other sensors.

Appendix C. Procedure to Use LeddarCDemo (SDK Code Example) with the Leddar T16 Sensor

1. When installing the Leddar[™] Configuration software, you must select both products below.



2. You should have the code **Examples** in your Documents folder in your computer C:\....Documents\LeddarTech as you can see below.



3. Copy paste all the DLL files from the C:\Program Files\LeddarTech\xtec to LeddaCDemo folder. Copy all the DLL files from here:

-		Manhood State States Advances of			and the second se	
		Windows7_OS (C:) ▶ Programmes	LeddarTec tec	▼ ⁴ ₇ Re	echercher dans : xtec	
)rganiser	Ŧ	Ouvrir 🔹 Nouveau dossier				
├ Fav	No	m	Modifié le	Туре	Taille	
E Bi		docDP0 pdf	14/00/2012 4-21 DM	Adoba Acrobat D	7 945 Ko	
🕵 Er	-	docV0 pdf	11/05/2012 11:52	Adobe Acrobat D	467 Ko	
	6	dtec dll	24/07/2018 4·26 PM	Extension de l'ann	352 Ko	
🔈 Te		dtecMonitor.exe	24/07/2018 4:26 PM	Application	162 Ko	
♥ D		dtecSimulator.exe	24/07/2018 4:26 PM	Application	93 Ko	
👢 Li	9	ippcc-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	127 Ko	
👢 Ci	4	ippcce9-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	2,434 Ko	
👢 PI	4	ippccm7-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	2,356 Ko	
👢 Sp	١	ippccn8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	2,501 Ko	
👢 Vi	4	ippccu8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	2,516 Ko	
👢 Pr	١	ippccy8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	2,455 Ko	
👢 Té	٩	ippcore-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	144 Ko	
👢 E>	9	ippi-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	376 Ko	
🐌 Ui	١	ippie9-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	15,829 Ko	
👢 D	4	ippim7-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	11,519 Ko	
👢 Aj	١	ippin8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	17,671 Ko	
👢 М	١	ippiu8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	17,702 Ko	
👢 U:	3	ippiy8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	13,416 Ko	
👢 Le	١	ipps-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	245 Ko	
N. D	4	ippse9-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	5,251 Ko	
L D	٩	ippsm7-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	4,818 Ko	
📕 Pc	٩	ippsn8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	5,392 Ko	
📕 Ri	9	ippsu8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	6,075 Ko	
📕 bi	١	ippsy8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	5,213 Ko	
📕 Re	4	ippvc-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	136 Ko	
📕 Li	٩	ippvce9-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	1,762 Ko	
L D	٩	ippvcm7-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	1,680 Ko	
Pc	١	ippvcn8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	1,953 Ko	
↓ l€	4	ippvcu8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	1,958 Ko	
In	4	ippvcy8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app	1,804 Ko	
	9	Leddar.dll	24/07/2018 4:25 PM	Extension de l'app	601 Ko	
BI	<u>(</u>)	LeddarC.dll	24/07/2018 4:26 PM	Extension de l'app	57 Ko	
I M	Ы	LeddarC.h	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	C/C++ Header	6 Ko	
	500 C 12	LeddarC.lib	24/07/2018 4:26 PM	Object File Library	11 Ko	
l Je	ы	LeddarCommands.h	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	C/C++ Header	2 Ko	
		LeddarNET.dll	24/07/2018 4:26 PM	Extension de l'app	117 Ko	
	S	LeddarNET2.dll	24/07/2018 4:27 PM	Extension de l'app	128 Ko	
	h	LeddarProperties.h	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	C/C++ Header	3 Ko	
	ы	LeadarResults.h	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	C/C++ Header	1 Ko	
10 🥵 👘	-	LeadarSDK.chm	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Fichier CHM	41/ Ko	
💭 de	2	Leudariech.dll	24/07/2018 4:25 PM	Extension de l'app	396 KO	
- u	8 -	ReleaseNotes rtf	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de Lapp	8/1 KO	
🗐 Bib	- W	Tracker dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Evtension de l'an-	40 KO	
		stoc dll	24/07/2010 4:20 PM	Extension de l'app	100 KO	
J. In		vtec.dll	24/07/2010 4.23 PM	Extension de l'app	122 V.O	
<u></u> м		xtecConfig eve	24/07/2010 4.23 PM	Application	197 Ko	
-		Acceoning.exe	27/07/2010 4.20 PIVI	Application	137 NO	

📕 🕨 Bibliothèques 🕨 Documents 🕨 Leo	ddarTech 🔸 LeddarCDemo	• • • Ri	echercher dans :	LeddarCDemo
er ▼ Partager avec ▼ Nouveau dossie	er			
Bibliothèque Documents				Organiser par : Dossier
LeddarcDemo	~			
Nom	Modifié le	Туре	Taille	
👢 хб4	08/08/2018 10:07	Dossier de fichiers		
👢 Debug	08/08/2018 10:07	Dossier de fichiers		
🛱 LeddarCDemo.vcxproj	08/08/2018 10:06	VC++ Project		10 Ko
🔋 LeddarCDemo.vcxproj.filters	08/08/2018 10:06	VC++ Project Filte		1 Ko
LeddarNET2.dll	24/07/2018 4:27 PM	Extension de l'app		128 Ko
🔌 LeddarC.dll	24/07/2018 4:26 PM	Extension de l'app		57 Ko
LeddarNET.dll	24/07/2018 4:26 PM	Extension de l'app		117 Ko
ModuleG.dll	24/07/2018 4:26 PM	Extension de l'app		27 Ko
Orange.dll	24/07/2018 4:26 PM	Extension de l'app		112 Ko
Tracker.dll	24/07/2018 4:26 PM	Extension de l'app		168 Ko
🔌 dtec.dll	24/07/2018 4:26 PM	Extension de l'app		352 Ko
Protos.dll	24/07/2018 4:25 PM	Extension de l'app		62 Ko
🔌 vtec.dll	24/07/2018 4:25 PM	Extension de l'app		99 Ko
EvalKit.dll	24/07/2018 4:25 PM	Extension de l'app		91 Ko
xtec.dll	24/07/2018 4:25 PM	Extension de l'app		432 Ko
Platform.dll	24/07/2018 4:25 PM	Extension de l'app		217 Ко
Leddar.dll	24/07/2018 4:25 PM	Extension de l'app		601 Ko
MediaMF.dll	24/07/2018 4:25 PM	Extension de l'app		28 Ko
LeddarTech.dll	24/07/2018 4:25 PM	Extension de l'app		396 Ko
LeddarCDemo.vcproj	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	VC++ Project		8 Ko
🖻 Main.c	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	C Source		19 Ko
ipps-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		245 Ko
ippse9-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		5,251 Ko
ippsm7-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		4,818 Ko
ippsn8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		5,392 Ko
ippsu8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		6,075 Ko
ippsy8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		5,213 Ko
ippvc-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		136 Ko
ippvce9-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		1,762 Ko
ippvcm7-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		1,680 Ko
ippvcn8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		1,953 Ko
ippvcu8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		1,958 Ko
ippvcy8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		1,804 Ko
ibiomp5md.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		871 Ko
ippcc-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		127 Ko
ippcce9-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		2,434 Ko
ippccm7-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		2,356 Ko
ippccn8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		2,501 Ko
ippccu8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		2,516 Ko
ippccy8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		2,455 Ko
ippcore-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		144 Ko
ippi-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		376 Ko
ippie9-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		15,829 Ko
ippim7-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		11,519 Ko
ippin8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		17,671 Ko
ippiu8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		17,702 Ko
ippiy8-7.0.dll	24/07/2018 4:22 PM	Extension de l'app		13,416 Ko

4. Paste the DLL files to the LeddarCDemo folder here:

👟 W

5. Open the LeddarCDemo.vcxproj with Visual Studio and compile the Main.c

o • (Porte globale) • O Walto 00 0.40 interpreters and a second 1 hersher dans Explorate P Hodule... SDE -- Software development kit for Leddar products. 11 AFALA MALALA Solution 'Examples' (3 pro S LeddarCDemo /// /// Norist Simple consule program demonstrating the use of Ledder: functions. ·· Références 5 Colored ances external trader Files // Platform: Min32, Linux /// Copyright.(s) 2015-2014 LondorTash Inc. All rights reserved. // Information contained herein is or may be confidential and progrietary to // industrial ion. Four to using any part of the orthouse development kit // contartach ion. From to using any part of the orthouse development kit // ecompanying this surface, you must accept and agree to be bound to the // keens of the industrial line. Lines agreement anisappropriate this file. // ecomposition of the industrial line. D Source Files 银环会议和考试公寓设施公式运行地方法行用的创建设设计和资格行用资格和保障和存储的保证公司行用公司计划时的任何和利用公司公司公司方法方法方的分词计用资格计和利用 * ** Mains eddarNetDer . +# Références 5 Configuration C* Program.cs
 RecordSettin igsFo III SensorListForm.cs P S Re48SDemo Alteriate cetalis. As alteriate cetype. Ar alteriate cetring. Ar alaslade "Leddert.b" Alaslade "Leddertraperties.b" souther ARRAY_LEN(=) (street(s)/street(s(0))) // Slobal carlable to evold passing to each function, static codesmandle generate-Marcia static void CheckErner(int slode) kf (allois 1= L0_SUCCESS)
{ inther Inessage[200]; Explora., Team E., Albeha LaddardatBroorNessage(stude, Dessage, staty_til Dessage)); LaddarDrintf(til "Laddard eres" (bd): Kave"), stude, Dessage); 5.1 WaitKey VCCodeFunction // function: baltway
// function: baltway
///
/// torisf mail far a kay to be pressed on the keyboard, pinging the sensor
to keep the connection alive while waiting
///
/// Verture The character corresponding to the key pressed (converted to
///
/// verture for letters).
// 281.94 10 11 C++ (Nania) WaitNey File FullNar c:\Users'u ser10 WaltKey False False IsDefault BDelete MainKey(vald) IsFinal False Isinjected Isinine False False // Leddardettey is blocking to we need to wait for a key to be pressed // before calling it, while(itsddarKeyPressed()) [IsOverloade: False IsSealed False IsTemplate False // IF a live connection is active we need to ping it periodically. If (indefinitionnected(grandle)) (TypeString char LF { Lookdar/Fing(grandle) 1+ LD_DUCCESS)
E raturn #1 1

6. The DOS window below appears:



Click **3. List Sensors** to find the sensor with the address 192.168.0.10.

Click option **1. Connect**, then option **1. Read Data**.



C:\Users\user104\Documents\LeddarTech\x64\Debug\LeddarCDemo.exe											
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	-
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.18	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.18	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.18	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.18	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.18	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.19	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.18	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.18	5.24	5.34	5.45	5.59	5.77	5.97	6.23	
4.68	4.72	4.73	5.18								

Note: The code example below reads only 8 segments.

LEDDARTECH INC.

4535 Wilfrid-Hamel Blvd, Suite 240 Quebec City QC G1P 2J7 Canada

Tel.: +1 418 653-9000

Canada or USA toll free: +1 855 865-9900

Fax: 1-418-653-9099

8:30 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. EST

support@leddartech.com

www.leddartech.com

© 2019 LeddarTech[™] Inc. All rights reserved.
